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COMMISSION,
COMPLAINT
Plaintiff,
VS.

Defendant.

1. From at least 1999 through 2005, Bruce E. Karatz, the former chief
executive officer and chairman of the board of KB Home, Inc. (‘KB Home” or the
“Company’’), enriched himself and others at the Company by using hindsight to
pick advantageous grant dates for KB Home’s annual stock option grants, which
on many occasions coincided with dates of low'monthly closing prices for the

Company’s common stock. As a result, KB Home made annual grants of
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undisclosed in-the-money stock options to its officers and employees that were not
accurately reported in the Company’s records. Finally, because of the backdating
scheme, KB Home filed periodic reports and proxy statements with the Securities
and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) which inaccurately stated that KB
Home granted options at fair-market-value on the date of the grant.

2. - Karatz received backdated annual stock option awards amounting to
2,860,000 shares of KB Home stock. Karatz exercised many of these options and
profited more than $6 million from the improper backdating.

3. By engaging in thé acts alleged in this Complaint, Karatz, among other
things, violated, or aided and abetted violations of, the antifraud, books and records,
and reporting provisions of the federal securities laws. The Commission seéks an

order imposing an office-and-director bar and enjoining Karatz from future

|| violations of the securities laws, requiring him to disgorge ill-gotten gains, pay

prejudgment interest, and pay a civil monetary penalty.
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
4. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to Sections 20(b),
20(d)(1), and 22(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (“Securities Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§
7Tt(b), 77t(d)(1), and 77v(a), and Sections 21(d), 21(e), and 27 of the Securities
Exchange A.Ct of 1934 (“Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. §§ 78u(d), 78u(e), and 78aa.

Karatz, directly or indirectly, made use of the means or instrumentalities of

interstate commerce, of the mails, or of the facilities of a national securities
exchange in connection with the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of
business alleged in this Complaint.

5. Venue 1s proper in this district pursuant to Section 2‘2(3) of the
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77v(a), and Section 27 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 78aa, because Karatz resided within this district during the relevant time period
and certain of the transactions, acts, practices, and courses of conduct constituting

violations of the laws alleged in this Complaint occurred within this district.

2
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THE DEFENDANT

6. Bruce E. Karatz, 61, is a resident of Los Angeles, California. Karatz

served as KB Home’s CEO, president, and a member of its board of directors from
1986 until his resignation on November 12, 2006. Karatz became KB Home’s
chairman in 1993 and served in that position until his November 2006 resignation.

RELEVANT ENTITY

7. KB Home, one of America’s largest homebuilders, is a Delaware
corporatiqn headquartered in Los Angeles, California. At all relevant times, its
common stock was registered under Section 12(b) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.
§78I(b), and was traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol “KBH.”

FACTS
A. KB Home’s Annual Option Grant Process

8. Between 1999 and 2005, KB Home awarded annual stock options as a
form of compensation to executives and lower-level employees. These opfions
were granted pursuant to the Company’s stock option plans, which stated “in no
event shall the exercise price be less than 100% of the fair market value of a share
of Common Stock at the time such Option is granted.”

9. During this period, KB Home’s compensation committee met in early
October and reviewed and approved the total number of options to be awarded in
the annual o.ption grant. Specifically, the compensation committee approved:

(1) specific option grant amounts to executives who fell within the definition of
“officer” under Rule 16a-1(f) of the Exchange Act, 17 C.F.R. § 240.16a-1(f)
(“Section 16 officers”), and (2) a pool of options for lower-level employees to be
allocated by KB Home’s human resources group subject to Kara’;z’s approval
sometime before the end of the fiscal year.

10.  Karatz either approved or selected the grant date for the annual option
grants to Section 16 officers and lower-level employees. As a Section 16 officer,

Karatz received options in these yearly grants.

3
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1999-2001 Annual Grants
11.  For the three annual grants between 1999 and 2001, KB Home

employees reviewed KB Home’s historical stock prices between the compensation
committee meeting date and the end of the fiscal year on November 30 to find the
date with the lowest stock price. Karatz then either approved or selected that date
as the grant date for the annual option award.

12.  The grant date Karatz either approved or selected for each of the
1999, 2000, and 2001 annual grants coincided with KB Home’s lowest stock price
between the compensation committee meeting date in each of those years and the
end of each fiscal year.

2002-2005 Annual Grants

13.  In April 2002, Congress passed the Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“SOX™).

Among other things, SOX changed the reporting rules for Section 16 officers by

requiring that any change in stock ownership, including the receipt of stock
options, be reported on Commission Form 4 “before the end of the second business
day, following the day on which the subject transaction has been executed.”

14.  In October 2002, in light of this new requirement and to ensure the
timely filing of Forms 4, KB Home’s in-house legal counsel recommended to the
vice president of human resources that KB Home use a “fixed date” rather than a
“play it out”. strategy when selecting the grant date for annual option grants.

15.  Karatz ultimately approved the “play it out” strategy, which involved
using hindsight, although SOX’s Form 4 filing requirements prevented him from
looking back several weeks when selecting the grant date for annual option awards.

16. Between 2002 and 2005, Karatz and others at KB Hz)me tracked the
Company’s stock price after the compensation committee meeting, waiting for a
downward trend. Once a downward trend was identified, Karatz and others at KB
Home reviewed the stock price over the previous three business days. Karatz then

selected or approved the date with the lowest price as the grant date for the

4
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Company’s annual stock option grant. As a result, Karatz and others at KB Home
received undisclosed in-the-money option grants while still filing timely Forms 4.
17. On October 2, 2003, the compensation committee met and approved

the fiscal year 2004 annual option grants, including a grant of 280,000 options to

| Karatz. On Tuésday, October 28, Karatz waited for the market close before

deciding on a grant date. Because the stock price on the three business days
between October 24 and October 28 was the lowest on Friday, October 24, Karatz
selected that day as the grant date for the annual option awards.

18.  On October 7, 2004, the compensation committee met and approved
the fiscal year 2005 annual option grants, including the 280,000 options that were
granted‘to Karatz. On Monday, October 25, Karatz approved October 22 as the
grant date, which had the lowest stock price on the three business days between
October 21 and October 25.

19.  On October 6, 2005, the compensation committee met and approved
the fiscal year 2006 annual option grants, including 250,000 options to Karatz. On
Wednesday, October 19, Karatz selected Tuesday, October 18 as the grant date for
the 2006 annual option award, as the stock price on that day was nearly $3.00 per
share lower than on October 19.

B. Karatz Hides His Backdating Conduct

20.  In mid-2006, the media began focusing on stock option backdating.
Due to media scrutiny of both KB Home’s unusually advantageous option grant
dates and Karatz’s extremely high compensation the chief legal officer (“CLO”) at
KB Home began a review of the Company’s stock option practlces The results of
this review were to be provided to KB Home’s audit committee in a written report
(the “Report™).

21. Karatz was advised that the Report would be provided to KB Home’s
audit committee. During the review, Karatz did not inform the CLO that hindsight

had been used in selecting the annual option grant date between 1999 and 2005.

5
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22.  During the review, Karatz was advised that selecting option grant
dates with a short “look-back” could be improper. |

23. Karatz reviewed several drafts of the Report before it was provided. to
the audit committee, and failed to correct the inaccurate conclusion that KB Home
did not backdate annual option grants from 1999 through 2005. The Report was
completed on June 14, 2006 and delivered to the audit committee. '

24.  That same day, Karatz participated in an audit committee conference
call in wh?ch the chairman of the audit committee summarized the Report,
including its conclusion that no backdating had occurred at KB Home. Once
again, Karatz did not correct the inaccurate conclusion.

25.  After the completion of the Report, outside counsel advised Karatz,
among other things, that employihg a short, price-driven “look-back” when
choosing an option grant date was improper.

C. Karatz Certifies KB Home’s Misleading Second Quarter 2006

Form 10-Q
26.  On July 7, 2006, KB Home filed a Form 10-Q stating that “all options

granted under the Company’s stock-based employee compensation plans had an
exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the
date of grant.”

27. .Two days before the filing, Karatz was advised by an in-house lawyer
that this statement may make the Form 10-Q misleading and was urgéd to delay
the filing in order to conduct an independent investigation into KB Home’s stock
option practices. That in-house lawyer later withdrew his concerns when Karatz
assured him that there would be an independent investigation into KB Home’s
stock option practices. |

28. Karatz signed and certified KB Home’s second quarter Form 10-Q on
July 6, 2006, despite having selected or approved the grant date for the annual

option awards with hindsight.
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D. Karatz Causes KB Home to File Materially False and Misleading

Periodic Reports
29.  From fiscal year 2000 through fiscal year 2006, KB Home filed

various registration statements on Forms S-3 (shelf take-down note offerings), S-4

(exchange offers), and S-8 that incorporated by reference KB Home’s Forms 10-K
and 10-Q.

30. Karatz reviewed and signed all of KB Home’s periodic reports from
fiscal year 2000 through fiscal year 2006. Additionally, pursuant to Section 302 of
SOX, Karatz certified KB Home’s periodic reports from 2003 through 2006.

31. KB Home’s Forms 10-Q for 1999 through 2001.failed to disclose that
Karatz backdated his and others’ option grants.

32.  From 2002 through 2006, KB Home’s periodic reports inaccurately
described KB Home’s stock option granting process by stating that all options had
an exercise price equal to market value on the date of grant. Because the date of
grant listed in the periodic reports was selected with hindsight and approved by
Karatz, he knew or was reckless in not knowing that this disclosure was
misleading.

33. KB Home also made misrepresentations in its proxy statements,
which Karatz reviewed. For example, between February 8, 2000 and March 6,
2006, KB H;)me filed six proxy statements that stated, “All options were granted at
market value on the date of grant.” As with KB Home’s periodic reports, this
disclosure was misleading because the grant dates were selected with hindsight and
approved by Karatz. In addition, each proxy disclosed an incorrect grant date that
applied to Karatz’s option awards. Moreover, KB Home’s Form; 10-K
incorporated by reference the executive compensation portion of the proxies,
which included the misleading statements above.

34. Because Karatz approved grant dates for the annual option awards that

had been chosen using hindsight, he knew or was reckless in not knowing that

7
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these disclosures were misleading.
E. - Karatz Benefits From the Scheme
35. Between 1999 and 2005, Karatz received approximately 2,860,000

options - about 35% of all of the annual stock options that KB Home granted in
this period. Karatz or his assigns exercised 1,164,350 of the backdated options he

received in 1999, 2000, 2001, and 2003, and then sold his shares. In doing so,
Karatz received an in-the-money benefit of $6,183,390.50.

'

HF. KB Home’s False Books and Records and Inadequate Accounting

Controls
36. Karatz played a central role in options backdating at KB Home. He
approved the final option amounts distributed to lower-level employees and either
approved or selected the grant date for annual option awards.
37. By virtue of Karatz’s cbnduct, KB Home’s books and records
inaccurately reflected, among other things, option grant dates and exercise prices.
38. Karatz failed to maintain KB Home’s system of controls by, among
other things, systematically backdating annual option grants to himself and others
from 1999 to 2005.
- FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FRAUD IN THE OFFER OR SALE OF SECURITIES
. Violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act

39. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Yy 1 through
38 above.

40. Karatz, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or
indirectly, in the offer or sale of securities by the use of means or instruments of
transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use of the mails,
knowingly or recklessly:

a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud;
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b. obtained money or property by means of untrue statements of a
material fact or by omitting to state a material fact necessary in
order to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances _ |
under which they were made, not misleading; or

c.  engaged in transactions, practices, or courses of business which
operated or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the
purchaser.

41. By engaging in the conduct described above, Karatz violated, and
unless resﬁained and enjoined will continue to violate, Section 17(a) of the
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77q(a).

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FRAUD IN CONNECTION WITH THE
PURCHASE OR SALE OF SECURITIES
Violations of Section 10(b) of the Exchange Act
and Rule 10b-5 Thereunder

42.  The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference 4 1 through
38 above. |

43. Karatz, by engaging in the conduct described above, directly or

indirectly, in connection with the purchase or sale of a security, by the use of
means or ins'trumentalities of interstate commerce, of the mails, or of the facilities
of a national securities exchange, knowingly or recklessly:

a. employed devices, schemes, or artifices to defraud;

b.  made untrue statements of a material fact or omitted to state a
material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading; or

c.  engaged in acts, practices or courses of business which operated

or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon other persons.

9
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44. By engaging in the conduct described above, Karatz violated, and
unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Section 10(b) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §
240.10b-5. |

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FALSE PROXY STATEMENTS
Violations of Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act
and Rule 14a-9 Thereunder

45.‘ 'The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference 49 1 through
38 above.

46. Karatz, by the use of the mails or by any means or instrumentality of
interstate commerce or of any facility of a national securities exchange or |
otherwise, knowingly, recklessly or negligently, solicited proxies by means of a
proxy statement, form of proxy, notice of meeting or other communication, written
or oral, containing statements which, at the time and in light of the circumstances
under which they were made, were false and misleading with respect to material
facts, or omitted to state material facts necessary in order to make the statements
therein not false or misleading or necessary to correct statements in earlier
communications with respect to the solicitation of the proxy for the same meeting
or subject m;1tter which was false or misleading.

47. By engaging in the conduct described above, Karatz violated, and
unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Section 14(a) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §78n(a), and Rule 14a-9 thereunder, 17 CF.R. §
240.14a-9. )

FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
EQUITY BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING VIOLATION
Violations of Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 16a-3 Thereunder

48. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference 9§ 1 through

10
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38 above.

49.  Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78p(a), and Rule 16a-
3 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.16a-3, require that any person that directly or
indirectly beneficially owns more than 10% of a company’s class of stock
registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78/, must notify the
Commission within 10 days of the acquisition. Additionally, Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act requires that if there has been a change of such ownership during a
month, the reporting persons shall file with the Commission a statement indicating
their ownérship at the end of the calendar month and the changes in that ownership
that occurred during the month. Exchange Act Rule 16a-3 requires that statements
of changes in beneficial ownership be filed on Form 4. \

50. By engaging in the conduct described above, Karati violated, and
unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Section 16(a) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78p(a), and Rule 16a-3 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §
240.16a-3.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FALSIFICATION OF RECORDS
Violations of Exchange Act Rule 13b2-1

51. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference Y 1 through
38 above.

52. Karatz, directly or indirectly, falsified or caused to be falsified KB
Home’s books, records and accounts subject to Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the

Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A).

53. By engaging in the conduct alleged above, Karatz Violated, and unless
restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Exchange Act Rule 13b2-1, 17
C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1.

/"
I

11
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SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
FALSE CERTIFICATION
Violations of Exchange Act Rule 13a-14

54. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference 9 1 through
38 above.

55. Karatz certified in each quarterly and annual report filed by KB Home
from 2002 through July 2006, that among other things, he reviewed each of these
reports an_d, based on his knowledge, these reports (i) did not contain any untrue
statement of material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were
made, not misleading and (ii) included financial statements and other financial
information which fairly presented, in all material respects, KB Home’s financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows.

56. By engaging in the conduct described above, Karatz violated, and
unless restrained and enjoined will continue to violate, Exchange Act Rule 13a-14,
17 C.F.R. § 240.13a-14.

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
VIOLATIONS OF COMMISSION PERIODIC
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
Aiding al-ld Abetting Violations of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, and
Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13 Thereunder

57. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference | 1 through
38 above.

58. KB Home violated Section 13(a) of the Exchange A;t, 15US.C. §
78m(a), and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13, 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240.13a-
1, and 240.13a-13, thereunder, by filing with the Commission materially false and

misleading annual reports on Forms 10-K for the fiscal years 1999 through 2005,

and by filing with the Commission materially false and misleading quarterly

12
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reports on Forms IO-Q for the same period.

59. Karatz knowingly provided substantial assistance to KB Home’s
violation of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(a), and Rules
12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13, 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1, and 240.13a-13,
thereunder.

60. By engaging in the conduct described above and pursuant to Section
20(e) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78t(e), Karatz aided and abetted KB
Home’s violations, and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to aid and abet
Violations., of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(a), and Rules
12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13, 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1, and 240.13a-13,

|| thereunder.

EIGHTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
RECORD-KEEPING VIOLATIONS
Aiding and Abetting Violations of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act
- 61. The Commission realleges and incorporates by reference §q 1 through
38 above.
62. KB Home violated Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A), by failing to make or keep books, records, and accounts

that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflected its transactions and
disposition (;f its assets.
63. Karatz knowinglny provided substantial assistance to KB Home’s
violation of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A).
64. By engaging in the conduct described above and pursuant to Section
20(e) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78t(e), Karatz aided and abetted KB
Home’s violations, and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to aid and abet
violations, of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A).
/1
11/

13
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NINTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
INTERNAL CONTROLS VIOLATIONS
Aiding and Abetting Violations of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act
65. The Commission realleges and incorporafes by reference 9 1 through
38 above. |
66. KB Home violated Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B), which obligates issuers of securities registered pursuant to

Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78/, to devise and maintain a
sufficient )syStem of internal accounting controls.

67. Karatz knowingly provided substantial assistance to KB Home’s
violation of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B).

-68. By engaging in the conduct described above and pursuant to Section
20(e) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78t(e), Karatz aided and abetted KB
Home’s violations, and unless restrained and enjoined will continue to aid and abet
violations, of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(B).
 PRAYER FOR RELIEF
WHEREFORE, the Conimission respectfully requests that the Court:

(a) Issue findings of fact and conclusions of law that Karatz committed
the violations alleged and charged herein. |

(b) -Issue judgments, in a form consistent with Rule 65(d) of the Federal
Rules of Civil Procedures, permanently enjoining Karatz, his agents, servants,
employees, attorneys, and those persons in active concert or participation with him,
who receive actual notice of the order by personal service or otherwise, from
violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77 q(a),_Sections 10(b),
14(a), and 16(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b), 78n(a), 78p(a), and
Rules 10b-5, 13b2-1, 13a-14, 14a-9, and 16a-3 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.10b-
5,240.13b2-1, 240.13a-14, 240.14a-9, and 240.16a-3, and from aiding and abetting
violations of Sections 13(a), 13(b)(2)(A), and 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, 15

14
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U.S.C. §§ 78m(a), 78m(b)(2)(A), and 78m(b)(2)(B), and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, and
13a-13 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1, and 240.13a-13.

(¢)  Order Karatz to disgorge all ill-gotten gains from his illegal conduct,
together with prejudgment interest thereon.

(d) Order Karatz tb pay civil penalties pursuant to Section 20(d) of the
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77t(d), and/or Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3).

(e)- Enter an order, pursuant to Section 20(e) of the Securities Act, 15
US.C. § 7.7t'(e), and/or Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §
78u(d)(2), prohibiting Karatz from serving as an officer or director of any issuer
that has a class of securities registered with the Commission pursuant to Section 12
of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 781, or that is required to file reports pursuant to
Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 780(d).

(f)  Retain jurisdiction of this action in accordance with the principles of
equity and the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in order to implement and carry
out the terms of all orders and decrees that may be entered, or to entertain any
suitable application or motion for additional relief within the jurisdiction of this
Court. .

(g)  Grant such other and further relief as this Court may determine to be

just and necessary.

DATED: September /9, 2008 Respectfully submitted,

JESSICA ‘R PUATHASNANON
torney for Plaintiff
Securities and Exchange Commission

15
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Marshall S. Sprung, Cal. Bar No. 188253
Jessica R. Puathasnanon, Cal. Bar No. 208074
Securities and Exchange Commission

5670 Wilshire Boulevard, 11th Floor

Los Angeles, California 90036

Telephone: (323) 965-3998
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BRUCE E. KARATZ

SUMMONS
DEFENDANT(S).

TO: DEFENDANT(S): Bruce E. Karatz
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Within __ 20 days after service of this summons on you (not counting the day you received it), you
must serve on the plaintiff an answer to the attached Mcomplaint O amended complaint
[ counterclaim [ cross-claim or a motion under Rule 12 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure. The answer
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. Clerk, U.S. District Court

: NATALIE LONGORIA

.......

[Use 60 days if the defendant is the United States or a United States agency, or is an offit g )]
60 days by Rule 12(a)(3)]. Rz
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The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Commission”) having filed
a Complaint and Defendant Bruce E. Karatz (“Karatz”) having éntered a general
appearance; consented to the Court’s jurisdiction over Karatz and the subject
matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment without admitting’
or denying the allegations of the Complaint (except as to jurisdiction); waived
findings of fact and conclusions of law; and waived any right to appeal from this
Final Judgment:

L.

IT iS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from
violating, directly or indirectly, Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (the “Exchange Act”), 15 U.S.C. § 78j(b), and Rule 10b-5 promulgated
thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5, by using any means or instrumentality of
interstate commerce, or of the mails, or of any facility of any national securities
exchange, in connection with the purchase dr sale of any security:

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to make any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a

. material fact necessary in order to make the statements made, in the
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not
misleading; or

(c) to engage in any act, practice, or course of business which operates or

would operate as a fraud or deceit upon any person.
IL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by

-
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personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from
violating Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”), 15
U.S.C. § 77q(a), in the offer or sale of any security by the use of any means or
instruments of transportation or communication in interstate commerce or by use
of the mails, directly or indirectly:

(a) to employ any device, scheme, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a
material fact or any omission of a material fact necessary in order to

‘make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; or

(c) to engage in any transaction, practice, or course of business which
operates or would operate as a fraud or deceit upon the purchaser.

I11.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from
violating Exchange Act Rule 13a-14, 17 C.F.R. § 240.13a-14, directly or
indirectly, by falsely signing personal certifications indicating that he has reviewed
periodic rep-orts containing financial statements which an issuer filed with the
Commission pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(a),
and that, based on his knowledge,

(a) these reports do not contain any untrue statement of material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made,
not misleading with respect to the period covered by the report; and

/17
/17
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(b) that information contained in these reports fairly present, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of the issuer’s

operations.
IV.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding
and abetting' any violation of Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.

§ 78m(a), and Rules 12b-20, 13a-1, and 13a-13 thereunder, 17 C.F.R. §§ 240.12b-
20, 240.13a-1, and 240.13a-13, by knowingly providing substantial assistance to an
1ssuer which has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78/, that files quarterly and annual reports with the
Commission on Forms 10-Q and Forms 10-K that fail to contain material
information necessary to make the required statements in the Forms 10-Q and
Forms 10-K, in light of the circumstances under which they are made, not
misleading.

V. )

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his ager;ts, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding
and abetting any violation of Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 78m(b)(2)(A), by knowingly providing substantial assistance to an issuer which
has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78/, or that is required to ﬁle reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 780(d), in failing to make and keep books, records, and
/1]
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accounts, which, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and disposition of the assets of the issuer.
| | VL
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz

|{and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or

participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from aiding
and abeﬁing any violation of Section 13(b)(2)(B) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C.
§ 78m(b)(2)'(B), by knowingly providing substantial assistance to an issuer which
has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act, 15
US.C.§ 782, or that is required to file reports pursuant to Section 15(d) of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 780(d), in failing to devise and maintain a system of
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable assurances that
(i) transactions are executed in accordance with management’s general or specific
authorization; (ii) transactions are recorded as necessary (a) to permit preparation
of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
or any other criteria applicable to such statements, and (b) to maintain '
accountability for assets; (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with
management’s general or specific authorization; and (iv) the recorded
accountabili.ty for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable
intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.
VIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from
violating Rule 13b2-1 of the Exchange Act, 17 C.F.R. § 240.13b2-1, by, directly or
/17
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indirectly, falsifying or causing to be falsified, any book, record or account subject
to Section 13(b)(2)(A) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78m(b)(2)(A).
VIIL

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from
violating; directly or indirectly, Section 14(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 US.C. §
78n(a), aﬁd Rule 14a-9 promulgated thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.14a-9, by using
the mails or by any means or instrumentality of interstate commerce or of any
facility of a national securities exchange to solicit by means of any proxy
statement, form of proxy, notice of meeting or other communication, written or
oral, containing any statement which, at the tinie and in the light of the
circumstances under which it is made, is false or misleading with respect to any
material fact, or which omits to state any material fact necessary in order to make
the statements therein not false or misleading or necessary to correct any statement
in any earlier communications with respect to the solicitation of a proxy for the
same meeting or subject matter which has become false or misleading.

IX.

IT IS.F URTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
and his agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in active concert or
participation with them who receive actual notice of this Final Judgment by
personal service or otherwise are permanently restrained and enjoined from
violating Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78p(a),_ and Rule 16a-3
thereunder, 17 C.F.R. § 240.16a-3, by failing to timely file required statements
with the Commission regarding changes in beneficial ownership of an issuer’s

stock.
/17
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X.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz is
liable for disgorgefnent of $6,183,390.50, representing profits gained as a result of
the conduct alleged in the Complaint, together with prejudgment interest thereon in |
the amount of $531,428.77, for a total of $6,714,819.27 (the “Disgorgement
Amount”). Karatz shall make this payment within ten (10) business days after
entry of this Final Judgment by certified check, bank cashier’s check, or United
States postal money order payable to KB Home, Inc. A copy of the cover letter
and mone.y order or check shall be sent to Finola H. Manvelian, Assistant Regional
Director, Los Angeles Regional Office, United States Securities and Exchange
Commission, 5670 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 11, Los Angeles, California 90036.
Karatz shall pay post-judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28
USC § 1961.

If Karatz fails to make the payment under this Final Judgment, the payment
including post-judgment interest, shall become due and payable to the Securities
and Exchange Commission immediately without further application to the Court.
Karatz shall satisfy this obligation by paying the Disgorgement Amount within ten
(10) business days after entry of this Final Judgment by certified check, bank
cashier’s check, or United States postal money order payable to the Securities and
Exchange C.ommissio'n. The payment shall be delivered or mailed to the Office of
Financial Management, Securities and Exchange Commission, Operations Center,
6432 General Green Way, Mail Stop 0-3, Alexandria, Virginia 22312, and shall be
accompanied by a letter identifying Bruce E. Karatz as a defendant in this action;
setting forth the title and civil action number of this action and the name of this
Court; and specifying that payment is made pursuant to this Final Judgment.
Karatz shall simultaneoﬁsly transmit photocopies of such payment to the attention
of Finola H. Manvelian, Assistant Regional Director, Los Angeles Regional

Office, United States Securities and Exchange Commission, 5670 Wilshire

_7-
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Boulevard, Suite 11, Los Angeles, California 90036. Karatz shall pay post-
judgment interest on any delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 USC § 1961. The
Commission shall remit the funds paid pursuant to this paragraph to the United
States Treasury. |

XI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that Karatz
shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of $480,000 pursuant to Section 20(d) of the
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77t(d), and Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act, 15
U.S.C. § 78u(d)(3). Karatz shall make this payment within ten (10) business days
after entry of this Final Judgment by certified check, bank cashier’s check, or
United States postal money order payable to the Securities and Exchange
Commission. The payment shall be delivered or mailed to the Office of Financial
Management, Securities and Exchange Commission, Operations Center, 6432
General Green Way, Mail Stop 0-3, Alexandria, Virginia 22312, and shall be
accompanied by a letter identifying Bruce E. Karatz as a defendant in this action;
setting forth the title and civil action number of this action and the name of this
Court; and specifying that payment is made pursuant to this Final Judgment. A
copy of the cover letter and money order or check shall be sent to Finola H.
Manvelian,.Assistant Regional Director, Los Angeles Regional Office, United
States Securities and Exchange Commission, 5670 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 11,
Los Angeles, California 90036. Karatz shall pay post-judgment interest on any
delinquent amounts pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1961. The Commission shall remit the
funds paid pursuant to this paragraph to the United States Treasury.

XIL. i

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that, pursuant
to Section 21 (d)(2) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78u(d)(2), and Section 20(e)
of the Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. § 77t(e), Karatz is prohibited, for 5 years following

the date of entry of this Final Judgment, from acting as an officer or director of any

-8-
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issuer that has a class of securities registered pursuant to Section 12 of the
Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 78/, or that is required to file reports pursuant to
Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. § 780(d).

XIII.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the
Consent is incorporated herein with the same force and effect as if fully set forth
herein, and that Karatz shall comply with all of the undertakings and agreements
set forth therein. | |

. XIV.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that this

|| Court shall retain jurisdiction of this matter for the purposes of enforcing the terms

of this Final Judgment.

Dated:

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY

This case has been assigned to District Judge A. Howard Matz and the assigned
discovery Magistrate Judge is Frederick F. Mumm.

The case number on all documents filed with the Court should read as follows:

CVO8- 6012 AHM (FFMx)

Pursuant to General Order 05-07 of the United States District Court for the Central

District of California, the Magistrate Judge has been designated to hear discovery related
motions.

All discovery related motions should be noticed on the calendar of the Magistrate Judge

NOTICE TO COUNSEL

A copy of this notice must be served with the summons and complaint on all defendants (if a removal action is
filed, a copy of this notice must be served on all plaintiffs).

Subsequent documents must be filed at the following location:

[X] Western Division [J Southern Division [J Eastern Division
312 N. Spring St., Rm. G-8 411 West Fourth St., Rm. 1-053 3470 Twelfth St., Rm. 134
Los Angeles, CA 90012 Santa Ana, CA 92701-4516 Riverside, CA 92501

Failure to file at the proper location will result in your documents being returned to you.

CV-18 (03/06) NOTICE OF ASSIGNMENT TO UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE JUDGE FOR DISCOVERY



